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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Mobile Telecommunications Company Saudi Arabia
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh, Saudi Arabia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mobile Telecommunications Company Saudi Arabia
(“the Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staternents taken as a whole:

* present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31,2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as endorsed in
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants
(SOCPA) and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by SOCPA; and

* comply with the applicable requirements of the Regulations for Companies and by-laws of
the Company in so far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as
endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters (KAMs)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each key audit matter, a description
of how our audit addressed the matter is set out below:

1. Revenue recognition

We have considered revenue to be a key audit matter since revenue is a key business driver for the
Company, there is a presumed risk of fraud related to revenue recognition as per the International
Standards on Auditing, as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company offers various types
of products including multiple arrangements, voluminous transactions are carried out on a daily
basis and revenue is recognized through automated systems.

We designed our audit procedures to address this KAM by performing first risk assessment
procedures, which included identification of risks and related assertions by understanding the
Company and its environment, documenting and evaluating accounting system for revenue
covering activities, processes and internal controls relevant to revenue, performance of
walkthorughs and tests of key controls to ensure design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of internal controls. Analytical procedures were also performed. Our internal IT
specialist was also involved to understand and evaluate the IT system related to revenue and check
reliability of data and reports generated through the IT systems. Thereafter, our audit procedures
were designed according to the results of risk assessment procedures. We verified, on a test basis,
invoices issued by the Company, reviewed key reconciliations performed by the Company’s
Revenue Assurance Team, performed detailed analytical procedures to understand that reasons for
variance in revenue from last year have a business rationale, performed procedures to ensure that
revenue recognition criteria adopted by the Company for all major revenue streams is appropriate
and in line with the Company’s accounting policies disclosed in financial statements.

The Company’s revenue streams recognized in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 18
to the financial statements. The Company’s accounting policies for revenue recognition are
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

2. Automated systems and controls

An important part of the Company’s financial processes is highly dependent on its information
technology (IT) systems with automated controls over these systems. Information technology
environment support various business processes, including billing systems, and the mix of manual
and automated controls, therefore that was considered as a key audit matter for us.




Key Audit Matters (KAMs) (Continue)

2. Automated systems and controls (Continue)

We evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the controls in systems relevant
to financial reporting. We have also tested IT general controls.

Additionally, we utilized data technology to extract and analyze the population of journals and
tested manual journals as part of our work on possible management override of controls, evaluated
user access controls around the relevant applications, tested user access rights to specific menus
and transactions within the relevant applications.

3. Property and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has significant balance of property and equipment (SR 6.53 billion) and intangible
assets (SR 15.12 billion) as at 31 December 2017. There are number of areas where management
judgment impacts carrying value of property and equipment and intangibles which includes
decision to capitalize or expense costs, annual review of assets’ useful lives (depreciation and
amortization period) and timely transfer from capital work in progress to completed assets. Further,
the management is currently carrying out a project reload which will substantially enhance
efficiency of service provision by the Company. The Company was also granted a Unified Service
License by Communications and Information Technology Commission (CITC) and life of its
existing license was also extended. Due to these, we considered property and equipment and
intangible assets as a key audit matters.

Our audit procedures included assessment of design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls over property and equipment and intangible asset accounting cycles, evaluating the
appropriateness of capitalization policies, performing detailed verification, on test basis, on costs
capitalized, checking timely transfer of assets from capital work in progress to completed assets,
and checking calculation of depreciation and amortization for the year. In performing these
procedures, we also discussed with management their judgments over nature of underlying costs
to capitalize and appropriateness of useful lives.

Property and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in note 6 and 7 respectively to the
financial statements. The Company’s accounting policies for property and equipment and
intangibles assets are disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements.

4. Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

Effective from 01 January 2017 al listed companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia were required to
adopt IFRSs in place of accounting standards issued by SOCPA. Accordingly, the Company also
adopted IFRSs for the first time to ensure compliance of the requirements. Since this involved
change of financial reporting framework, it was considered a KAM by us.



Key Audit Matters (KAMs) (Continue)
4. Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (Continue)

The Company appointed a consultant for transition to IFRSs who carried out a detailed exercise to
identify changes in accounting policies and treatments, presentation and disclosures in financial
statements. The consultant issued a report and we had a meeting with the consultant to give our
comments on the report on IFRSs transition. We also checked the Company’s compliance with the
IFRSs requirements in terms of accounting policies, accounting treatments, presentation and
disclosure specially the requirements of IFRS 1 ‘First-Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards’.

The impacts of transition to IFRSs on the Company’s financial statements are disclosed in note 36
to the financial statements.

Other information included in the Company’s Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2017 annual report, other
than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Management is responsible for the
other information in its annual report. The annual report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by SOCPA, applicable requirements of Regulation for Companies and by-
laws of the Company and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements (Continue)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control;

» obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

» evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

¢ conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continue)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Notes 2017 2016 01 Jan 2016
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000

(restated) (restated)
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property and equipment 6 6,530,036 7,005,995 5,007,464
Intangible assets i 15,122,472 15,620,199 16,460,855
Other assets 531,122 532,181 310,036
Total non-current assets 22,183,630 23,158,375 21,778,355
Current assets
Inventories 8 103,959 42,101 103,613
Trade and other receivables 9 2,536,730 2,395,681 2,655,725
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1,115,809 918,560 1,378,498
Total current assets 3,756,498 3,356,342 4,137,836
TOTAL ASSETS 25,940,128 26,514,717 25,916,191
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 11 5,837,292 5,837,292 5,837,292
Hedging reserve 12 (2,613) (3,968) (7.204)
Other reserves (8,165) 153 -
Accumulated deficit (2,262,953) (2,274,492) (1,295,949)
Total capital and reserves 3,563,561 3,558,985 4,534,139
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 13 4,681,151 10,141,090 9,904,333
Amounts due to related parties 14 5,943,125 5,456,713 4,804,205
Other non-current liabilities 167,381 696,793 151,979
Derivative financial instruments 12 2,613 3,968 7,204
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 15 94,167 75,323 67,809

—— e idey G7.R00
Total non-current liabilities 10,888,437 16,373,887 14,935,530
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 4,865,537 4,195,913 3,259,503
Current portion of long-term borrowings 13 6,169,722 1,857,269 2,455,075
Deferred revenue 452 871 528,663 731,944
Total current liabilities 11,488,130 6,581,845 6,446,522
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,940,128 26,514,717 25,916,191
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Mehdi Khalfaoui Peter Kaliaropoulos Bader Nasser Al Kharafi
CFO CEO Vice Chairman



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IN COME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Revenue
Cost of revenue and sales

Gross profit

Distribution and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Net profit /(loss) before net finance income and Zakat
Finance charges

Other income

Finance income

Net profit /(loss) before Zakat

Zakat

Net profit /(loss) for the Year

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:

Remeasurement of end of service benefit liability

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net fair value gain on hedging instruments entered into for
cash flow hedges

Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year

Earnings /(loss) per share (in Saudi Riyals)

Basic
Diluted
Mehdi Khalfaoui Peter Kaliafopoulos
CFO | CEO

Vice Chairman

2017 2016

Note SR’000 SR’000
(restated)

18 7,305,822 0,926,652
19 (2,392.804) (2,525,984)
4,913,018 4,400,668
20 (2,185,148) (2,365,900)
21 (210,684) (239.342)
6-7 (1,613,944) (1,849,858)
903,242 (54,432)
22 (910,093) (955,782)
23 1,785 4,613
24 16,605 27.058
11,539 (978.543)
25 “ "
11,539 (978,543)
(8,318) 153
12 1,355 3,236
4,576 (975,154)

27
0.020 (1.676)
0.020 (1.676)
e ,-g:f:{':}ﬂ;,_ 3 . 1
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Bader Nasser Al Kharafi



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COM PANY)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Share  Hedging Other Accumulated Total
Note capital reserve  reserves deficit

SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Balance at 1 January 2017 as
previously reported 5,837,292 (3,968) 153 (2,258,567) 3,574,910
Impact of adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards 5 . i i (18, 28] (15,925)
As restated 5,837,292 (3,968) 153 (2,274,492) 3,558,985
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,355 (8,318) 11,539 4,576
Balance at 31 December 2017 5,837,292 (2,613) (8,165) (2,262,953) 3,563,561
Balance at 1 January 2016 as previously 5.837.292 (7.204) - (1278407) 4551681
reported
Impact of adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards oDk . ) ) {1%543) (ha, S92
As restated 5837292 (7,204) - (1,295949) 4,534,139
Total comprehensive loss for the year - 3,236 153 (978,543) (975,154)
Balance at 31 December 2016 5,837,292 (3,968) 153 (2,274,492) 3,558,985
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Mehdi Khalfaoui Peter Kaliaropoulos Bader Nasser Al Kharafi
CFO CEO Vice Chairman



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit / (loss) for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net loss for the period to net
cash from operating activities:

Provision for doubtful receivables and other assets
Depreciation and amortization

Other provisions

Provision for slow moving inventory items
Finance charges

Currency revaluation (loss) / gain

Net provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits
Operating income before changes in working capital
Changes in working capital

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Trade and other payables

Other assets

Deferred revenue

Other non-current liabilities

Cash flows generated from operating activities
Financial charges paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment

Proceed from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current and non-current portion of borrowing facility
Amounts due to related parties

Net cash (used in) /generated from financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

] ?@k

{}

Mehdi Khalfaoui
CFO CEO

eter Kaliaropoulos.

2017 2016
Note SR'000 SR'000
(Restated)
11,539 (978,543)
9 59910 42336
6-7 1,613,944 1,849,858
15,762 (32.079)
8 = (10,941)
910,093 955,782
7497 (3,806)
10,526 7,667

2,629271 1,830,274

(200,960) 217,709

(61,858) 72,453

1,157,706 (409,988)

(71,393) (284,485)

(75,792) (203,280)

(529412) 544,814

2,847,562 1,767,497

(482,508) (536,116)

2,365,054 1,231,381

6 (1,553,782) (2,005,718)
7 (450) (529)
47,500 23,469

(1,506,732) (1,982,778)

13 (1,076,647) (161,044)
14 415,574 452,503
(661,073) 291,459

197,249 (459,938)

10 918,560 1,378,498
1,115,809 918,560

&5
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Bader Nasser Al Kharafi

Vice Chairman



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Nista 2017 2016
SR'000 SR'000
Non-cash transactions:
Adjustmentl to property and equipment with 1,045,643 905,199
corresponding effect to accounts payable
Adjustment to advances from shareholders with
corresponding effect to current portion of borrowing 70,838 200,005
facilities
Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments 12 1,355 3,236
and corresponding debit to shareholders’ equity
\ Vi
/1) N —] / {f / - .\;iw}na;f 3 a)
{Ji < | / = e —
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Mehdi Khalfaoui Peter Kaliaropoulos Bader Nasser Al Kharafi
CFO -~ CEO ) Vice Chairman



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES

1.1 Mobile Telecommunications Company Saudi Arabia (the "Company" or "Zain KSA"), provides mobile
telecommunication services in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in which it operates, purchasess,defstalls,
manages and maintains mobile telephone services.

The Company is a "Saudi Joint Stock Company" established pursuant to the Ministerial Resdtuticitsdated
25 Jumada | 1428H (corresponding to 11 June 2007) and No. 357 dated 28 Dhu Al-Hijjah 1428H (wbngspo
to 7 January 2008), Royal Decree No. 48/M dated 26 Jumada | 1428H (corresponding to 12 Juaed200
Commercial Registration No. 1010246192 issued in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia on 4 Rali42@il
(corresponding to 12 March 2008) to operate as the 3rd GSM public mobile cellular and technologyceastal
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for twenty five (25) years.

The registered address of the Company is P.O. Box 295814, Riyadh 11351, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Based on the High Order dated 30 Dhu Al-Hijjah 1437 H (corresponding to 01 October 2016) wahkich w
announced by the Capital Market Authority on 01 Muharram 1438 H (corresponding to 02 October 2016) which
directed the Communications and Information Technology Commission (CITC) to coordinat®ebtle
Telecommunication Company Saudi Arabia (Zain KSA) to:

a. Extend its license for an additional 15-years period, bringing the remaining period to 32 years eRtliRgbin
Al Awwal 1469 H (corresponding to 18 January 2047). (Yearly impact will be reduction itization charge
of license by approximately SR 433 million and reduction in loss by the same amount);

b. Grantthe Company a Unified License where it can offer all telecommunication semcicelng fixed services;
and

c. Coordinate with the Ministry of Finance to discuss the alternatives regarding the amounthegeternment.

On 23 Jumada first 1438 H (corresponding to 20 February 2017) CITC issued Zain Kd3fted License to
provide all telecommunication services; in line with the High Order dated 30 DHija 1437 H (corresponding
to 01 October 2016).

On 12 Ramadan 1438 H (corresponding to 7 June 2017) the Company acquired 10MHz of 1800MHz spectrum; at
a total cost of SR 844 million where 30% will be due in 2017 and the remaining over 10wgahswill be

effective in January 2018.

The Company made the first advance payment of 30% amounting to SR 253.8 million during thir®Qurter

1.2 The Company incurred net profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 of SR 11.5 million, after
incorporating the positive impacts of the stated High Order, and had an accumulated defict 26 [8IRon as
at this date. The Company’s management believes that what was granted from the High Order, as stated above,
will have a positive impact on the Company and it will be successful in meetingigatimvls in normal course of
operations. The management finalized the business plan which was approved by the Board of Directors. Th
Company has appointed a consultant and has prepared a lender case which was shared with the\hewd wit
refinance the loans. The directors of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Company kas adequat
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

1.3 The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on October 24, 2017, recommended to restructure the shar
capital of the Company by reducing it from SR 5,837,291,750 to SR 3,616,110,783 and the total number of shares
from 583,729,175 shares to 361,611,078 shares by cancellation of 222,118,097 shares. the purpose of such capita
reduction is to absorb the accumulated losses of the Company as at June 30, 2017. Further, the Board has
recommended to increase the share capital by SR 6,000,000,000 through the issuance of 600,000,0@8 new sha
(rights issue) which will increase its capital from SAR 3,616,110,783 to SAR 9,616,110,783laadultiin the
injection of additional fresh cash which will be used to reduce the Company’s debt. The recommendation of the
Board is subject to the approval of the relevant authorities including the Capital Marketiu#thdithe relevant
extraordinary general assemblies.

1.4 These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 January 2018
Refinancing Arrangements

On 31 July 2013 the Company has signed an amended and restated “Murhabaha financing Agreement” which
also includes some of the Existing Murabaha Facility Investors. As per the terms of thgreement the
Company has settled a portion of the existing facility amounting to SR 369 nfithiomits internal cash
resources to reduce the outstanding principle from SR 9 billion to SR 8.63 billion. Witgrimg f the new
agreement the Company has successfully extended the maturity date of its Existing Murabahfaifé&cility
years ending 30 June 2018 which was due on 31 July 2013.

The Company is complying with the existing loan covenants. In the second quarter of 2015iestdtreerter

of 2016, the Company made a prepayment for the amount of SR 121 million and SR 392 million respectively
as a mandatory settlement due to its excess free cash flow. On 31 December 2016, the Comparfirgtaid t
instalment amounting SR 432 million as 5% of the principle. On 22 June 2017, the Company paid the second
instalment amounting SR 432 million as 5% of the principle. On 28 December 2017, the Cpaipathe

third instalment amounting SR 1,295 million as 15% of the principle.

(Also refer to Note 1331

On 2 June 2016 the Company has renewed its long-term Commercial loan facility agresouwing SR

2.25 billion with a two years tenor that is extendable by one additional year. The loan is uncondéiahally
irrevocably guaranteed by Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C. The principal amount will be repaid
in one bullet payment at the maturity date.

(Also refer to Note 13).

On 15 August 2016 the Company has signed a long-term commercial loan facility agreementtrayo

SAR 2.25 billion with a two years tenor that is extendable by one additional year. Thacilgyvedgreement
signed with the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China to replace the existing syndicaityd Téid new

facility will have lower financing cost compared to the existing facilities, theifyaisilunconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.

On 7 December 2017 the Company obtained a preliminary approval to extend the findl rdate to 9
August 2019.

(Also refer to Note 1.3).



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 BASISOF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as endorsed in Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the Saudi Organizatiot
for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). These financial statements are thenfitgtl dinancial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS. The requirements of IFRS 1 First-time Adoption oétioteal Financial
Reporting Standards have been applied in preparing these financial statements. (Refer to note 36) which discloses
the impact of adopting IFRS in these financial statements. The date of transitioB@CRA to IFRS is 01

January 2016.

The Capital Market Authority (CMA) announced the Board of Commissioners resolution datecbbh6rQ€1 6
(corresponding to 15 Muharram 1438H), which obligates the listed entities to apply the codbmuekedure the
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets upon adopting the tiffRE8yéars
period starting from the IFRSs adoption date, while continuing to abide by the IFRSs, thatd@sed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, disclosure requirements, which require or encourage the disclosureiofvtiaef
within the notes to the financial statements. The Company has complied with the requirenests fimancial
statements.

Basis of measurement

Thesefinancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the end of seftdce benef
provision, which has been actuarially valued and the measurement of available for sale firsgtsiabasplained
in the relevant accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The Company has used same accounting policies which were used for the year ended 31 December 2016, unles:
mentioned otherwise.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRSs that are endorsed in the KingdonA\ddl8audi
requires the use of certain critical estimates and assumptions that affect the reported dmesettsand liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amowneas aev
expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under th
circumstances. The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accountin
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results

Functional and presentation currency

Saudi Riyal is the functional currency. These Financial Statements are presented in Saudi Rjyalsn(&R)
off to the nearest thousand.



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their resigembvalr their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and deprecidtimh anet
reviewed at the end of annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimateddoowant a

prospective basis.

The Company applies the following annual rates of depreciation to its prapérgquipment:

Telecommunications equipment 5% to 33.3%
IT systems and servers 20% to 33.3%
Leashold Improvement 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%

Vehicles and other transportation equipment 20%

Capital work in progress is not depreciated.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceecsrgrinighe
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

I ntangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrietl lass@ccumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straightdioedrsabeir
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reaighvednd of annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carasdleds accumulated
impairment losses.

The Company applies the following annual rates of amortization to its intangible assets:

License fee 2.5%
Computer software 20% to 50%

Brands have an indefinite useful life and are assessed for impairment at annual reporting date.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expeuated from
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measheedifeerence
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognizedrifopsofithien

the asset is derecognized.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment (continued)
I mpairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an ingssrihemty

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable arhaarihdividual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the agget\Wlen a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocathghto indiv
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Compastygefneaating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.ihgasdessn
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-taxraiscinat
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spheificset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be lessahgimg amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable anioatir#ent
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a casig-geiterat

is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the incregegchoaunt does

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized fo
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairmestriessgnized immediately

in profit or loss.

I nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of inventalésrari@ed on a

weighted average basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inlesgasies
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits

held with banks, all of which have maturities of 90 days or less and are available by theeCompany
unless otherwise stated.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits

End of service benefits

The end of service benefits provision, which is a defined benefit plan, is determined using the projected uni
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of annual reportiod. peri
Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are reflected immediately in the stdieanerdlof

position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings
and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognigeafitror loss in the period of a

plan amendment. Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the periuet to the
defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gainsesmdrosurtailments and
settlements);

¢ interest expense; and

e re-measurements.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loséria tteen
“General and administration expenses”.

The Companyas started using actuarial valuation for employees’ end of service benefits obligation from the
date of transition to IFRSs, on an annual basis.

Retirement benefits
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees to the Gegenaafion for
Social Insurance. This represents a defined contribution plan. The payments made are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages anessalanual leave and
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benediistexpect
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs thattiye dir
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {ban financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or dedtmtethe fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactien dbesttly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities atdhievthrough profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

12



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through

profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans

and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined

at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financia asserecognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or salesaddatancial
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulatimmvention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instmghent
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is thatrai@ctly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form ahpategf the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expettbe lifebt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is (i) cortinggéaération that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, (ii) heldifiay, or (iii) it
is designated at FVTPL by the Company.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instrumehtt the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or contingent considératimay be paid by
an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

¢ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsiatemoult
otherwise arise; or

¢ the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liaklitisth, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance withnipens documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided intertietybasis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 perreitgire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arisingeasurement

recognized in profit or los®ividends or interest earned on the financial asset are included in the ‘otherincome
/ chargesline item in the statement of profit or loss.

13



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Heldto-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or deteremipajinents and

fixed maturity dates that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold tityn&uibbsequent to

initial recognition, heldo-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment loss which is recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payatearts not

quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables, bank balances and
cash are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impasmdmth is
recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for shogdeiables when
the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets (AFSfinancial assets)

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or arefied aks$a) loans and
receivables, (b) heltb-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AFS assets are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period wituaichanges recognized in

other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserie. When t
AFS assets is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss in the investment revaksgioe is classified to

profit or loss. When AFS assets are considered to be impaired (refer below) the cumulative loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss assifieation
adjustment even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. Reversals of impairmentlosses for
investment in an equity instrument are not reversed through profit or loss. If, isexjgaht period, the fair

value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, thenempéiiss is reversed,

with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or.loss

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whalse fzannb
be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment lossesi@tofheach reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairmeandtotheach
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective eviderxa that,
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the finaseiatlas estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair valbhe séturity below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or
the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are asgegagcént on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually.

Objective evidence of impairment fopartfolio of receivables could include the Company’s past experience

of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio pasageaedit
period granted, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that cdirelate wi
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recoghéeddfesence
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss i®dnaashe difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directlyfif@nailal assets

with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use adrceallow
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impagment
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or lossxterthéhat the

carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exctesavhatized

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows frest the as
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the rislensards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantiallyisiistaad rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retairted theeres
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Companysidtatastially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues taere¢bhegni
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of &inancial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had bessdrecogni
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Comparsyaetoption to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carryingfatinedimancial

asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and thegéohdger
recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the Trhasfidference

between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and thihswonsideration

received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss. A cumulative gairttatlbas

been recognized in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognized
and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a finangiari@bilit
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the aaeetstiiy after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain

or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or ¢canceflthe Company’s own equity
instruments.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability) isgld for trading, or (i) it is
designated at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instrumeiigt the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or loss@sgyann re-measurement
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporatete sy paid on
the financial liabilityand is included in the ‘other income / chargédine item.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) @a#yimind subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a finandig} habi of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate & tiet @tactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that foegrahpatt of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the dfpedtdue
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial liabilities.

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the finalitjal liabi
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

17



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk on theréitmfiygdicate
Murabaha facility. The Company designates these derivatives financial instruments as cash flownhedges
accordance with the approved policiesl consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy. The
Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. These derivatiaé financi
instruments are measured at fair value. The effective portions of changes in the fair valueatieedare
recognized in hedging reserve under the statement of equity. The gain or loss relating to the inefféctive

is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Gains or losses
recognized initially in hedging reserve are transferred to the statement of profit oandssther
comprehensive income in the period in which the hedged item impacts the statement of pesfiaodlother
comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

The Compny’s revenue mainly comprises revenue from mobile telecommunications. Revenue from mobile
telecommunications comprises amounts charged to customers in respect of airtime usage, text messaging, the
provision of other mobile telecommunications services, including data services and informatisiomrov

fees for connecting users of other fixed line and equipment salesiobile networks to the Company’s

network.

Airtime used by customers is invoiced and recorded as part of a periodic billing cycle anuzest@s
revenue over the related access period. Unbilled revenue resulting from services already foowities

billing cycle date to the end of each accounting period is accrued and unearned revenue from sbevices to
provided in periods after each accounting period is deferred. Revenue from the sale of prepaidefedid

until such time as the customer uses the airtime, or the credit expires.

Revenue from data services and information provision is recognized when the Company haggdinerm
related service and, depending on the nature of the service, is recognized either at the gross amtaunt billed
the customer or the amount receivable by the Company as discount for facilitating tbe. Séweiincome

from provision of content services, is recognized on net basis to record the exteatvof #isare of income

only.

Incentives are provided to customers in various forms as part of a promotional offénigrg. such incentives

are provided in the context of an arrangement that comprises other deliverables, revenue representing the fair
value of the incentive, relative to other deliverables provided to the customer as pasaofi¢he@rrangement,

is deferred and recognized in line with the Company’s performance of its obligations relating to the incentive.

In arrangements including more than one deliverable, the arrangement consideration is allocated to each
deliverable based on the fair value of the individual element. The Company generallyroetehmifair value

of individual elements based on prices at which the deliverable is regularly sold on a standalone basis.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to the property and equipment are recorded as a deduction fronothbecost
assets in arriving at the respective carrying amount. Any additional amount rase®eorded as deferred
grantandadjusted against recorded capital expenditure on assets.

Grant related to income (reimbursement of expenses) are adjusted against the related expenses.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer Bubditéingalisks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leaSesnpany does not have
any finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tetmerexcept
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economis trenefite leased
asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currenciesher than the Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies), which is Saudi
Riyals, are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the arssattihe end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at thevaities) @t that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreggieycare not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Zakat

Zakat is calculated and provided for by the Company in accordance with Saudi Arabian fiscal reqndtisns
charged to profit or loss. It is calculated using zakat rates that have been enacted or substanteclyyetinsct
end of the reporting period.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or poodafcgualifying assets are
capitalized as part of those assets. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructe®)lasfaarpast
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Indefeasible Rights of Use (“IRU”)

IRUs corresponds to the right to use a portion of the capacity of a terrestsiabmarine transmission cable
granted for a fixed period. IRUs are recognized at cost as an asset when the Company hasdliedgiea#ible
right to use an identified portion of the underlying asset, generally optical fibers or dédicavelength
bandwidth, and the duration of the right is for the major part of the underlying asset’s economic life. They are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the expected period of use and theelif®atract which
ranges between 10 to 20 years.

19



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS)

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
Effectivefor annual
New and revised |IFRSs periods beginning
on or after
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, &0 2014) 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirementsthéor
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequ
amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification i
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in idbee 2013

to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Amettszd
version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to includem@gairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classifica
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

A finalized version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements f{
financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition a
Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the following areas:

e Classfication and measurement: Financial assets are classified by
reference to the business model within which they are held and tr
contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS Yuctsd
a 'fair value through other comprehensive income' category ffiaircelebt
instruments. Financial liabilities are classified in a similar manner to unc
IAS 39, however there are differences in the requirements applyihg to
measurement of an entity's own credit risk.

e Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected cre:
loss' model for the measurement of the impairment of financial asséts, ¢
is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before dos®dit
is recognized

e Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that
designed to be more closely aligned with how entities undertake r
management activities when hedging financial and non-financial ri
exposures.

e Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial asse
and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39.

Amendments to IFRS 7Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to When IFRS 9 is first
disclosures about the initial application of IFRS 9 applied
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS) (continued)

New and revised | FRSs Effective for annual
periods beginning on or
after

IFRS 7Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge \yhen IFRS 9 is first applied
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments) resulting fromr
introduction of the hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9

IFRS 15Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018

In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehe
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition gui
including IAS 18Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize reven
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an a
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitl
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard introdi
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligat
in the contract.

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises when (or as) a performance obliga
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescr
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scen
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

Amendments to IFRS 1Revenue from Contracts with Customers to clarify

three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, prir 1 January 2018
versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some trar

relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS) (continued)

New and revised | FRSs Effectivefor annual
periods beginning on or
after

IFRS 16Leases 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, measure, prese!
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unle
lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low
Lessorscontinue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predec

IAS 17.
Amendments to IFRS 10onsolidated Financial Satements and IAS 28 Effective date deferred
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the indefinitely

treatment of the sale or contribution of assets between an investor an
associate or joint venture.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2612016 Cycle amending The amendments to IFRS
IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 and IAS 28 are effective fo
annual periods beginning ¢
or after 1 January 2018, th
amendment to IFRS 12 fol
annual periods beginning ¢

or after 1 January 2017

Amendments to IAS 1Bcome Taxesrelating to the recognition of deferred 1 January 2017
tax assets for unrealized losses

Amendments to IAS &atement of Cash Flows to provide disclosures that 1 January 2017
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities ari
from financing activities

IFRIC 22Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 1 January 2018

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts
transactions where:

e there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a forei
currency;

e the entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred incc
liability in respect of that consideration, in advance of th
recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and

e the prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monete

Amendments to IFRS Share Based Payment regarding classification and 1 January 2018
measurement of share based payment transactions
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS) (continued)

New and revised IFRSs Effectivefor annual periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS #insurance Contracts. Relating to the different 1 January 2018

effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contre

standard.

Amendments to IAS 4lhvestment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to state 1 January 2018

that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment prope
when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change o
occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investrr
property. A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by

itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The paragrapt
been amended to state that the list of examples therein is non-exhausti

Management anticipates that these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted ir
the Company’s financial statements for the year when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, may have no materiahithpact
financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements for the
annual year beginning 1 January 2018. IFRS 16 will be adopted for the annual year beginniny 2028u@he
application of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 may have a significant impact on amounts repodisdlasgres
made in the Company’s financial statements in respect of revenue from contracts with customers and the
Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities. The Company has appointed a consultant and it is, now, not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of effects of the application of these standatds Qothpany
performs a detailed review.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTSAND KEY SOURCESOF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

5.1 Critical accounting judgments in applying accounting policies

The Company has not made any critical accounting judgment in applying accounting policies.

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation ymatertaint
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjtstinerdarrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

Impairment of accounts receivable

An estimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable is madethdrenis objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the origimas tof the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that thetdelwill enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 60 days overdue) are camdiickicrd

that the accounts receivable are impaifeat.individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on
an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are past due, aredssess
collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time that the amount is past due.

At the reporting date, gross trade receivables \&8&td,954 million with SR 625.7 million being provided for.

Any difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the amounts expected will be
recognized in profit or loss.

Useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and intangible assets

An estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property and equipment and inteasgitdewhich comprise

a significant portion of the Company’s total assets, is made for the purposes of calculating depreciation and
amortization respectively. These estimates are made based on expected usage for useful livesvaResigual
determined based on experience and observable data where available.

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

The Company makes various estimates in determining the provisiammfdoyees’ end of service benefits
provision. These estimates are disclosed in note 15.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

Leasehold improvements
Telecommunications equipment

IT systems and servers

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles and other transportation equipme
Capital work in progress

Accumulated depreciation
Leasehold improvements

Telecommunications equipment

IT systems and servers

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles and other transportation equipm

Carrying Amount

January Additions  Disposald/ December
1, 2017 Transfers 31, 2017
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
345,547 8,626 8,918 363,091

10,885,539 699,709 164,010 11,749,258
562,095 24,768 11,276 598,139
160,998 15,041 - 176,039

3,778 73 - 3,851
830,033 (209,985) (213,847) 406,201

12,787,990 538,232 (29,643) 13,296,579

273,648 25,011 - 298,659
4,928,444 921,531 (27,703) 5,822,272
467,227 46,149 (24) 513,352
108,906 19,576 - 128,482
3,770 8 - 3,778
5,781,995 1,012,275 (27,727) 6,766,543
7,005,995 6,530,036
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Cost

Leasehold improvements
Telecommunications equipment

IT systems and servers

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles and other transportation equipmen
Capital work in progress

Accumulated depreciation
Leasehold improvements

Telecommunications equipment

IT systems and servers

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
Vehicles and other transportation equipmen

Carrying Amount

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

License fee*

Computer software licenses
Brand

Accumulated amortization
License fee*
Computer software licenses

Carrying Amount

15,620,199
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January  Additions  Disposals/ December
1, 2016 Transfers 31, 2016
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000

317,847 14,639 13,061 345,547
8,607,428 2,164,416 113,695 10,885,539
521,282 19,443 21,370 562,095
132,906 28,109 (17) 160,998
3,770 8 - 3,778
293,312 714,351  (177,630) 830,033
9,876,545 2,940,966 (29,521) 12,787,990
241,192 32,456 - 273,648
4,111,525 837,224 (20,305) 4,928,444
420,914 46,313 - 467,227
91,680 17,250 (24) 108,906
3,770 - - 3,770
4,869,081 933,243 (20,329) 5,781,995
5,007,464 7,005,995

January  Additions  Disposals/ December

1, 2017 Transfers 31, 2017

SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
23,364,230 - - 23,364,230
303,176 58,031 1,186 362,393
7,500 - - 7,500
23,674,906 58,031 1,186 23,734,123
7,824,729 517,120 - 8,341,849
229,978 39,824 - 269,802
8,054,707 556,944 - 8,611,651
15,122,472




7.

MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

INTANGIBLE ASSET S(continued)
January Additions  Disposals/ December
1, 2016 Transfers 31, 2016
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Cost
License fee* 23,359,180 5,050 - 23,364,230
Computer software licenses 281,778 15,761 5,637 303,176
Brand - 7,500 - 7,500
23,640,958 28,311 5,637 23,674,906
Accumulated amortization
License fee* 6,981,740 842,989 - 7,824,729
Computer software licenses 198,363 31,615 - 229,978
7,180,103 874,604 - 8,054,707
7-1 Licensefee

Pursuant to the Ministerial Resolutions No. 176 dated 25 Jumada |, 1428H (corresponding to June 11, 2007)
and No. 357 dated 28 Dhu Al-Hijjah, 1428H (corresponding to January 7, 2008) and Royal Re&@&d/N

dated 26 Jumada |, 1428H (corresponding to June 12, 2007), the 3rd license t& probile
telecommunication services within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia over 25 years was granted to pa@yCom

for an amount of SR 22.91 billion. The license fee also comprises an amount equal to SR #44&18 m
relating to financing costs which were capitalized as part of the licensi @mxordance with accounting
standards applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia at that time.

The High Order dated 30 Dhu Al-Hijjah 1437 H (corresponding to 01 October 2016), which was announced
by the Capital Market Authority on 01 Muharram 1438 H (corresponding to 02 O@0bey), directed the
Communications and Information Technology Commission (CITC) to coordinate with eMobil
Telecommunication Company Saudi Arabia (Zain) to extend its license for an addittopehrs period.

This extended the remaining period to 32 years ending on 21/Rabi Al Awwal 1é&&8relsponding to 18
January 2047).
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

8. INVENTORIES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Handsets and accessories 122,379 55,850
Sim cards 3,653 7,290
Prepaid recharge cards 1,239 2,089
Other inventories 1,369 1,553
128,640 66,782

Less: Allowance for slow moving items (24,681) (24,681)
103,959 42,101

Cost of inventories recognized as an expense 286,383 243,700

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000
Trade receivables 1,954,047 1,674,426
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (625,773) (565,863)
Net trade receivables 1,328,274 1,108,563
Advances to suppliers and refundable deposits (refer nott 818,536 860,876
Prepayments 281,397 292,692
Advances for transmission lines and fiber links 59,152 61,635
Other receivables 49,371 71,915
2,536,730 2,395,681

Other non- current assets (refer to note 9-2) 531,122 532,181

Tradereceivables

The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 30 days. No interest is chargedeaeitrables.

The Company recognizes an allowance for doubtful debts based on the ageing of its overdue debtors which
increases as the debtors become more overdue as historical experience indicates that the likalihoaatf

being recoverable decreases the more the amount is overdue.

The company performs credit-vetting procedures before granting credit to new customers. These peseedures
reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. There have been no changes to these procedures from the previou
year.

Two of the company's debtors comprise 37% of the total trade receivables balance. Theotharecugtomers
who comprise more than 10% of the total trade receivables balance.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables totaling SR 93.9 million (2016: SR 58.7 million) existed at théimgptate which were past
due which had not been provided for, as per the policy, the amounts are still considered tceballecwd there
has not been a significant decrease in credit quality since credit was initially granted.

Adge of overduetrade receivables not provided for

2017 2016
SR’000 SR°000
60 to 90 days 16,691 22,439
120 to 180 days 37,667 17,332
180 to 360 days 39,622 18,972
93,980 58,743

There were no amounts at the reporting date that were neither past due nor impaired for which the credit quality
had reduced since the initial granting of credit.

M ovement in the allowance for doubtful debts

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Opening balance 565,863 523,528
Charged for the year 63,504 43,860
Amounts reversed during the year (3,599 (1,525)
Closing balance 625,773 565,863

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Company considers any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of théngeperiod. The
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large anddinFeaiCompany

does not hold any collateral over the impaired trade receivables.

Age of impaired trade receivables

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

60 to 90 days 1,855 2,493
120 to 180 days 9,417 4,333
180 to 360 days 21,335 10,216
Over 360 days 593,166 548,821
Total impaired trade receivables 625,773 565,863

9-1 Advancesto suppliers and refundable deposits

This includes advances amounting to SR 635 million (SR 253.8 million spectrum advance ppsonite)l by the
Company during 2017 (2016: SR 379 million) to various suppliers under agreements signed by the Company. These
agreements are for telecommunications infrastructure supply that will increase network coverageraadtieaha
quality of mobile telecommunications services provided by the Company

9-2 Other non-current assets
This amount related to the non-current portion of rights of use.
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Cash on hand 191 110
Cash at banks 455,618 368,450
Time deposits 660,000 550,000
1,115,809 918,560

10-1 The Company invests part of the surplus cash in time deposits with maturity petiogeofionth or less

11

12.

13.

with local commercial banks. The annual commission Average rates on these deposits during20193Wer
(2016: 2.24%). The total commission earned by the Company during 2017 was SR 16.6 million (2016: SR 27.06
million).

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017 conf@8&&a9,175hares stated at SR 10 per
share owned.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company entered into profit rate swaps which mature in 2018. The notional amount of the contfct as at
December 2017 was SR 3,236 milliandthe fair value was a negative amount of SR 2.6 million as at this date.
The average contracted fixed interest rate ranges from 1.55% to 3%. A gain of SR 1.35 million was recognized in
other comprehensive income as a result of fair value movements relating to this hedge. vEhgefaif interest

rate swaps at the end of the reporting period is determined by discounting the future cashritpive ugirves

at the end of the reporting period and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Syndicate Murabaha facility (refer to note 13.1) 5,965,541 7,689,334

Export credit facility (refer to note 13.2) 35,935 107,658

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China loan 2,264,223 2,262,244
(refer to note 13.3)

Ministry of Finance (refer to note 13.4) 2,609,888 2,020,615

Less: debt arrangement costs (24,714) (81,492)

10,850,873 11,998,359

Less: current portion included in current liabilities (6,169,722) (1,857,269)

4,681,151 10,141,090

30



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

13. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)

13-1 Syndicated Murabaha facility

The syndicated Murabaha facility of approximately SR 9.75 billion was arranged by Banque Saudi Braysi
2009. This Murabaha facility consists of a Saudi Riyal portion totaling SR 7.09 billion and a United Stated Dolla
portion totaling USD 710 million (equivalent to SR 2.66 billion).

Financing charges as specified under the Murabaha facility are payable in quarterly instalenehtslidg of the
loan. In accordance with the terms of the Murabaha financing agreement the Company exercisegitsnsvo
to extend the initial maturity date (12 August 2011) for six months each, totaling therehdve facility for one
full year with the final maturity date being 27 July 2012. Subsequently, the Company sulycebtfined several
approvals to extend the facility until 31 July 2013. During 2013, the Company partialyl settamount of SR
750 million out of the cash proceeds from the rights issue transaction.

On 31 July 2013, the Companygned an amended and restated ‘“Murabaha financing agreement” with a
consortium of banks which also includes existing Murabaha facility investors to extend théymatieriof its
Murabaha facility for five years until 30 June 2018, which was due on 31 July 2013. THeaciiéyvhas been
restructured as an amortizing facility, 25% of which will be due during years 4 to 5lib¢ thiethe facility, asa
mandatory minimum amount due, with 75% due at maturity date. The Company has papatythe facility,
utilizing a portion of its internal cash resources, and the current outstanding principal s&Rd&&billion with
the SR portion totaling SR 6.3 billion and the USD portion totaling USD 0.6 billion (SR 2.3 billion).

Financing chargess specified under the Murabaha financing agreement are payable in quarterly instalments over
five years. The new facility is secured partially by a guarantee from Mobile TelecommunicatioparGofnS.C
and apledge of shares of the Company owned by some of the founding shareholders.

Financial and other covenants imposed by the financing banks are:

a) Assignment of certain contracts and receivables;

b)  Pledge of insurance contracts and operating accounts;

c) Loans and guarantees restrictions to customers, distributors, dealers, retailers, wholesalers and employees;
d) No further financial indebtedness, pari passu, insurance on all assets; and

e) EBITDA and leverage levels.

The Company is complying with the existing loan covenants. In the second quarter of 2015 asichinerfer of

2016, the Company made a prepayment for the amount of SR 121 million and SR 392 millioivedgpeca
mandatory settlement due to its excess free cash flow.

On 31 December 2016, the Company paid the first instalment amounting SR 432 million as 5% of the principle.
On 22 June 2017, the Company paid the second instalment amounting SR 432 million as 5% of the principle.
On 28 December 2017, the Company paid the third instalment amounting SR to 1,295 mill&% a$ the
principle.

The Company has appointed a consultant and has prepared a lender case which was shared with itie banks w
view to refinance the loans.
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13. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)

13-2  Export credit facility

On 20 June 2012 an Export Credit Agency facility agreement having two tranches (A and B) totaling to USD 325
million was signed between the Company and certain international banks. This facility is secugubbgntee
provided by Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C. and is subordinate to the Murabaha facility. The
purpose of this facility is to:

o repay amounts due to one of the Company's technical vendors; and
o finance further new expansion plans provided by the same technical vendor.

The Company has utilized tranche A (USD 155 million) in full and also utilized USD 98 nallioof USD 170
million of tranche B. The remaining unutilized portion of tranche B was cancelled dogifigst quarter of 2013.

Financing charges as specified under this facility agreement are payable in semi-annu&ntsstaler the life
of the loan and based on LIBOR plus agreed margin. Repayment will take place over yiwarg5pn a semi-
annual basis starting July 2012 for tranche A (totaling USD 155 million) and July 20tt@8rfone B (totaling
USD 98 million). As at 31 December 2017, all eighteen (31 December 2016: 16) instalments were repaid in full.

13-3  Industrial and Commercial Bank of Chinaloan

On 15 August 2016 the Company has signed a long-term commercial loan facility agreemerttrgnio SR
2.25 Billion with a two years’ tenor that is extendable by one additional year and payable at maturity. The new
facility agreement signed with the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China to replace thegesyistilicated
facility; this new facility will have lower financing cost compared to the existiedities. Financing charges are
based on LIBOR plus agreed margin and payable in quarterly instalments. The Facility is iomailyd#nd
irrevocably guaranteed by Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C.

On 7 December 2017 the Company obtained a preliminary approval to extend the final maturity date to 9 August
20109.

13-4  Ministry of Finance

During 2013, the Company has signed an agreement with the Ministry of Finance, Saudi Atefeiagayments

of its dues to the government for the next seven years, estimated at SAR 5.6 billion. Téesd dalyments

under this agreement will be bearing commercial commission payable annually, while the amouitit lie w
repayable in equal instalments starting June 2021. The amount deferred by the Company as of 31 December 2017
amounted to SR 2,431 million (2016: SR 1,923 million).
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MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

14. AMOUNTSDUE TO RELATED PARTIES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C (refer to note 14. 937,293 884,572
Mobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C (refer to note 14. 4,836,833 4,403,680
Founding shareholders (refer to note 14.2) 134,888 134,888
Infra Capital Investments (refer to note 14.3) 31,098 30,578
Other related parties 3,013 2,995
5,943,125 5,456,713

14-1 M aobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C

This amount relates to accrued managementfees payable to the Company’s largest shareholder. The amount
is unsecured, interest free and does not have any fixed terms of repayment but is not repayabtaebef
Syndicated Murabaha facility referred to in note 13.1 has been settled.

14-2 Founding shareholders

This amount relates to accrued financergés and is payable to the Company’s founding shareholders. The
amount is unsecured, bears interest at market rates and does not have any fixed terms of faytapmerit
repayable before the Syndicated Murabaha facility referred to in note 13.1 has been settled.

14-3 M aobile Telecommunications Company K.S.C and I nfra Capital | nvestments

These amounts are payable to shareholders and bears interest at market rates. The amounts are unsecured a
cannot be repaid before the Syndicated Murabaha facility referred to in note 13.1 has been settled. These amounts
include accrued financial charges3R 1,536 million (2016: SR 1,252 million).

15. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Opening balance (restated) 75,323 67,809
Current service cost 17,687 15,925
Interest cost 3,766 3,390
Payments (10,927) (11,648)
Actuarial gain /(loss) 8,318 (153)
Closing balance 94,167 75,323

The most recent actuarial valuation was performed by Lux Actuaries & Consultants and wasegeniing the
projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

2017 201¢

SR’000 SR’000

Attrition rates 10% to 13% 10% to 139
Salary increases 7% 4%
Discount rate 4.75% 5%

All movements in the end of service benefits liability are recognized in profit oexaspt for the actuarial gain
which is recognized in other comprehensive income.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

17.

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000
Accrued government charges 1,714,500 1,143,767
Trade and other accruals 1,325,601 1,299,430
Trade payables 715,504 671,598
Promissory notes payable 368,198 450,195
Employee related accruals 63,286 44,928

Government grant - USF Project (note 31) 39,557 -
Other payables and Accruals 638,891 585,995
4,865,537 4,195,913

Trade payables includes amount due to related parties amounting to SR 125.3 mill&rSR®D.3 for

providing telecommunication services to related parties.

No interest is charged on trade payables. The Company has financial risk management policies innslaiee to e

that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Company paid retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees for year 20/ Gerteral
Organization for Social Insurance SR 15,148,068 (2016: SR 15,204,281)

18. REVENUE
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue:
2017 2016
SR’000 SR’000
Usage charges 5,579,435 6,127,107
Subscription 1,710,305 778,067
Other revenue 16,082 21,478
7,305,822 6,926,652
19. COST OF REVENUE AND SALES
2017 2016
SR’000 SR’000
Access charges 934,526 1,215,062
Government charges 1,063,159 961,543
Leased lines 94,049 88,563
Other 301,070 260,816
2,392,804 2,525,984

Government charges are related to annual license and commercial provisioning fee under the guidelines issued by

the Communications and Information Technol@gynmission (“CITC”).
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20. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Employees’ salaries and related charges 551,788 539,059
Rent expenses 484,326 476,046
Repairs and maintenance 457,037 409,129
Dealers’ commission 351,860 409,314
Advertising 110,530 209,892
Bad debts expense (Note 9 ) 63,504 43,860
Utilities 55,883 54,469
Branding fees (Note 14) 52,722 49,960
Consulting 17,432 24,102
Other 40,066 150,069
2,185,148 2,365,900

21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

Employees’ salaries and related charges 88,033 127,117
Repairs and maintenance 84,554 77,943
Legal, consulting and professional charges 21,921 17,282
System support and maintenance 2,887 4,078
Other 13,289 12,922
210,684 239,342

22. FINANCE CHARGES

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000
Syndicate Murabaha facility 460,090 502,985
Related parties 281,026 257,423
ICBC - ANB (2016) 83,864 129,148
Ministry of Finance 80,654 54,957
Export credit facility 4,459 11,269
910,093 955,782
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23. OTHER INCOME

2017 2016
SR’000 SR’000
Foreign exchange (loss) /gains (7,497) 3,806
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 450 807
Withholding tax refunded 8,832 -
1,785 4,613

24. FINANCE INCOME
2017 2016
SR’000 SR’000
Time deposits 16,605 27,058

25. Components of Zakat base

The significant components of the Company’s approximate zakat base, for the year ended December 31,2017
which are subject to certain adjustments under zakat and income tax regulations, principally comprise the

following:
2017 2016
SR’000 SR’000

Shareholders’ equity at beginning of year 3,576,266 4,554,916
Provisions at beginning of year 937,419 819,331
Long-term borrowings and shareholders’ advances 14,818,895 11,517,166
Other non- current liabilities 167,381 1,355,888
Adjusted net loss for the year (see below) 133,798 (808,636)
Property and equipment (6,530,036) (7,005,995)
Intangible assets (15,122,472) (16,196,261)
Other non-current assets (531,122) (96,208)
Approximate negative Zakat base of the Company (2,549,871) (5,859,799)

Zakat is payable at 2.5% of the higher of the approximate Zakat base or adjusted net income.

Components of adjusted net loss

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000
Net profit /(loss) for the year 11,539 (978,543)
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 59,910 8,094
Allowance for doubtful debts and slow moving inventory 20,053 31,394
Other provisions 42,296 131,883
Adjusted net profit /(loss) for the year 133,798 (807,172)
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25. Components of Zakat base (continued)
Status of assessments

The Company had finalized its zakat and tax status up to 2008 and obtained the related certificate.
The Company had submitted its financial statements along with zakat and returns for the year2@0®9 to
and paid zakat and withholding tax according to the filed returns.

On 18 Ramadan 1436 H (corresponding to 07 July 2015), the Company received the Zakat and githholdin
tax assessments from General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) for the years 2009 toh2déhywihey

asked to pay an additional amount of SR 619,852,491 of which SR 352,481,222 are related to Zakat differences
and SR 267,371,269 as withholding tax subject to delay penalty payable from the due date uglenibatset

date equals to 1% for every 30 days.

Zain appealed this claim for additional payments on 27 August 2015, and was able to have the amount of SR
352M related to Zakat revoked entirely. In addition, SR 219M of the withholding tax claim was\aked.

To appeal before the High Appeal Committee (HAC), Zain completed the required conditions iticlles Ar

of the Saudi Tax Law, by paying the invoices issued by GAZT amounting SR 48M on 16 November 2017
related to WHT. and issued a bank guarantee for the amount of SR 43M related to the penalty generated from
the delay in paying the WHT.

Based on the above, Zain received the reassessment letter for the paid amount and presentedriss objecti
before the HAC on the preliminary Appeal Committee opinion on 19 November 2017.

There is no financial impact as the company has sufficient provisions to cover these amounts.

26. EMPLOYEE BENEFITSEXPENSE

2017 2016

SR’000 SR’000

End of service benefits 29,423 19,316
Other employee benefits 393,390 393,207
422,813 412,523

27. EARNINGS/ (Loss) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted Earnings /(loss) per share is based on the profit /(loss) for theSRdr1ob million (2016:
SR (978.5) million) divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue of 583,729,175.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concerraxiitiizimy
the return to stakeholders through the optimizatibthe debt and equity balance. The Company’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from the previous year.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt and equity comprising share capital, thedssigeng r
the accumulated deficit, long-term borrowings and amounts due to related parties.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets 2017 201¢

SR’000 SR’000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,115,809 918,56(
Loans and receivables 1,377,645 1,180,47

Financial liabilities
Amortized cost 21,828,916 22,347,77

The amounts for loans and receivables and cash and bank baignessits the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuweinstrtiment, change in
market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity arkbe fhe
Company is exposed to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk only.

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies which float against the Saudi Riyal
and consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. These amounts are not hedged as the
exposures are not considered to be material to the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

Foreign
Foreign currency Exchange
Details currency amount rate SR’000
(‘000)
Trade and other payables Euro 343 413 1,416
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

Foreign currency

Foreign amount Exchange
Details currency (°000) rate SR’000
Cash and cash equivalents Euro 2,172 4.489 9,750
Cash and cash equivalents GBP 453 5.056 2,289

12,039

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the currency of Europe (Euro) and the United Kingdom (GBP).

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the Saudi Rigalthgai
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foueigncy risk internally

to key management personnel and represemisgement’s assessment of the reasonably possible change

in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in profit where the Saudi Riyal strengthens 5%h&gainst
relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the Saudi Riyal against the relevant curreecyptiidrbe a
comparable impact on profindthe balances below would be negative

Impact on profit

Currency SR’000
Euro 103
GBP 22

Interest and liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of disgctvhich has
established aappropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s

short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrawilitie$, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. There has been no change to this strategy from the previous year.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company borrow foadsat fl
interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by the use of interest ratestnags. Hedging
activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and definezppskite, ensuring the
most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The Companis exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest and liquidity risk management (Continued)
Interest rate senditivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest ratebddgatl
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analpsepared assuming
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstandireg\vidrole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate riskyiritekegllmanagement
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other variables werenk&dt, the
Companys profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease or increase by SR 53,859,275. This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings;

The following tablesletail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Interest Within one Oneyear to Over five

rate year fiveyears years Total
Details % SR’000 SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Trade and other Interest 4,865 537 _ _ 4,865,537
payables free
Amounts dqe to Interest } 940,265 _ 940,265
related parties free
Amounts dqe to Market ) 3,332,255 ) 3.332,255
related parties related
Long-term Market 5,994,987 2,250,000 2,431,151 10,676,138
borrowings related
Total 10,860,524 6,522,520 2,431,151 19,814,195

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual aimigaesulting in financial

loss to the Company. Potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of tradalsEsssimmounts due

from a related party and short-term cash investments. Details of how credit risk neldtade receivables is
managed is disclosed in note 9. The amounts due from a related party are monitored and provision is made,
where necessary, for any irrecoverable amounts. Short-term cash investments are only plaeadtswitith a

high credit rating.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raisingds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inatilisell a financial asset quickly

at an amount close to its fair value. The Company has accumulated deficit as of thaedateomtitions indicate

that the Company’s ability to meet its obligations as they become due and to continue as a going concern are
dependent upon the Company’s ability to arrange adequate funds in a timely manner. The directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that suffindstare made

available to meet any future commitments.
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28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The directors consider that the carrying value of the financial instruments reported in thergtatdinancial
position approximates their fair value.

29 RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

During the year, the Company entered into the following trading transactions with related parties:

2017 201¢€

SR’000 SR’000

Revenue from entities owned by a shareholder 116,768 113,688

Purchases from entities owned by a shareholder 87,458 76,719

Branding fees charged by a shareholder (note 20) 52,722 49,960

Finance charges charged by a shareholder 281,027 257,423
The following balances were outstanding at the reporting date:

2017 201¢€

SR’000 SR’000

Amounts due to a shareholder 2,971 2,971

Amounts due to entity owned by a shareholder 42 23

Amounts due from a shareholder 673 570

Amounts due from entity owned by a shareholder 5,837 85

Other amounts due to related parties are disclosed in note 14.

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received
by related parties other than those disclosed in notBldZmounts have been expensed in the current year
for doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties.

2017 201¢€
SR’000 SR’000
Short-term benefits 16,708 17,00:
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30

31

32

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The company had the following operating lease commitments at the reporting date inofesifes;ttechnical
buildings and offices:

2017 201¢

SR’000 SR’000

Within one year 477,815 501,792
One year to five years 492,092 585,551
Over five years 207,997 273,881
1,177,904 1,361,224

The company incurred the following operating lease expenditure during the year.

2017 201€

SR’000 SR’000

Premises 470,702 470,14
Vehicles 1,413 1,48C
472,115 471,66:

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The company had capital commitments totaling SR 2,041million, including SR 1,062 million related to USF
project, at the reporting date (31 December 2016: SR 1,564 million)

GOVERNMENT GRANTSRECEIVED

The Company received total government grant income during the year SR 67 million. An anfRr2®f
million was set off against property and equipment and SR 2 million was includedriattprofit of the year.

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

34

35

The Company in the normal course of business is subject to and also pursuing lawsuits, proceedings, penalties
and fines imposed by the regulator, municipalities and other claims from suppliers and telecoriumunicat
providers. The Company, after having consulted with its internal and external legal counsel and technical
advisors, believes that these matters are not expected to have a significant impact on the findiociarposi

the results of operations of the Company.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company only has one segment which is mobile phone services and operates in one geographical location,
being the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Consequently, segment reporting as required by IFRS 8 Operating
Segments has not been disclosed since this would merely be a duplication of information alreadyndetailed
these financial statement

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparatives figures have been reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current period.
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36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

36-1 Effect of IFRS adoption on the Statement of Financial Position asat 01 January 2016

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Other assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Amounts Effect of Opening IFRS
previously transition to statement of
Note  reported IFRS financial
368 (socPA) SR’000 position
SR’000 SR’000
5,007,46. - 5,007,46.
a 16,812,75 (351,901 16,460,85
a,b - 310,03t 310,03t
c 132,10: (132,102 -
21,952,322 (173,967) 21,778,355
103,61 - 103,61
b,d - 2,655725 2,655725
d 1,092,85! (1,092,85¢€ -
d 1,521,00. (1,521,004 -
1,378,49: - 1,378,49
4,095,971 41,865 4,137,836
26,048,293 (132,102) 25,916,191
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36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

(continued)
36-1
(continued)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Hedging reserve
Accumulated deficit

Total capital and reserves

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowings

Advances from shareholders
Amounts due to related parties
Other non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provision for employees’ end of service
benefits

Total non-current liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Current portion of borrowings

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Due to related parties

Deferred revenue

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note
36-8

36-2

c.e

D —h —h

]
ik

Effect of IFRS adoption on the Opening Statement of Financial Position asat 01 January 2016

Amounts Opening IFRS
previously Effect of statement of
reported transition to financial
IFRS position
(SOCPA) , ,
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
5,837,29:; - 5,837,29;
(7,204 - (7,204
(1,278,407 (17,542 (1,295,949
4,551,681 (17,542) 4,534,139
8,615,72 1,288,60! 9,904,33:
3,966,59' (3,966,599 -
834,61 3,969,59: 4,801,D5
1,507,86 (1,355,888 151,97¢
7,20 - 7,20¢
66,02( 1,78¢ 67,80¢
14,998,029 (62,499) 14,932,530
- 3,259,50: 3,259,50:
2,450,00! 5,07( 2,455,07!
329,54 (329,541 -
286,04( (286,040 -
2,99¢ (2,994 -
731,94 - 731,94«
2,698,05! (2,698,059 -
6,498,583 (52,061) 6,446,522
26,048,293 (132,102) 25,916,191
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36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS”) (continued)

36-2  Reconciliation of equity asat 1 January 2016

Note As at 1 January 20.

36-8 SR000
Total equity under SOCPA 4,551,681
Actuarial value of end of service benefits g (1,789
Measurement of debt arrangement costs C (15,753
Total adjustment to equity (17,542)
Total equity under IFRS 4,534,139

36-3  Effect of IFRS adoption on the statement of profit or lossand other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2016
Amounts
previously Effect of
Note reported transition to Income for
36-8 (SOCPA) IFRS IFRS
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Revenue 6,926,652 - 6,926,652
Cost of sales (2,525,984) - (2,525,984)
Gross profit 4,400,668 - 4,400,668
Distribution and marketing expenses (2,365,900) - (2,365,900)
General and administrative expenses g (239,769) 427 (239,342)
Depreciation and amortization (1,849,858) - (1,849,858)
Net loss befor e net finance income (54,859) 427 (54,432)
and Zakat
Finance charges c,h (953,013) (2,769) (955,782)
Finance income h 27,865 (807) 27,058
Other income h - 4,613 4,613
Net loss before Zakat (980,007) 1,464 (978,543)
Zakat - - -
Net lossfor the year (980,007) 1,464 (978,543)
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of end of service
benefit liability | - 153 153
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Net fair value gain on hedging
instruments entered into for cash flow
hedges n - 3,236 3,236
Total comprehensiveincome for
the year (980,007) 4,853 (975,154)

45



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRS”)
(continued)

36-4  Reconciliation of lossfor the year ended 31 December 2016

Lossbefore  Lossfor the

Note Zakat year

36-8 SR SR

Lossfor theyear reported under SOCPA (980,007) (980,007)
Actuarial value of end of service benefits g 427 427
Measurement of debt arrangement costs c 1,037 1,037
Lossfor theyear under IFRS (978,543) (978,543)
Other comprehensive income l,n 3,389
Total comprehensive loss for the period under IFRS (975,154)

36-5 Effect of IFRS adoption on the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2016

Amounts

. Effect of Opening IFRS
previously "
Note transition to statement of
reported . . .
36-8 (SOCPA) IFRS financial position
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 7,005,995 - 7,005,995
Intangible assets a 16,196,261 (576,062) 15,620,199
Other assets a,b - 532,181 532,181
Other non-current assets c 96,208 (96,208) -
Total non-current assets 23,298,464 (140,089) 23,158,375
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 42,101 - 42,101
Trade and other receivables b,d - 2,395,681 2,395,681
Accounts receivable d 1,108,563 (1,108,563) -
Prepaid expenses and other assets d 1,243,237 (1,243,237) -
Cash and cash equivalents 918,560 - 918,560
Total current assets 3,312,461 43,881 3,356,342
TOTAL ASSETS 26,610,925 (96,208) 26,514,717
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36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS”) (continued)

36-5 Effect of IFRS adoption on the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2016 (continued)

Amounts Opening IFRS
Note previously Effect of statement of
36-8 reported transitionto  financial position
(SOCPA) SIE’F(ﬁO SR’000
SR’000

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 5,837,29 - 5,837,292
Hedging reserve (3,968 - (3,968)
Other Reserves 36-6 - 152 153
Accumulated deficit 36-6 (2,258,414 (16,078 (2,274,492)
Total capital and reserves 3,574,910 (15,925) 3,558,985
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings c.e 8,244,98 1,896,10: 10,141,090
Advances from shareholders f 4,569,14 (4,569,147 -
Amounts due to related parties f 884,57. 4,572,14 5,456,713
Other non-current liabilities e 2,619,32. (1,922,531 696,793
Derivative financial instruments 3,96¢ - 3,968
Prov1s_10n for employees’ end of service gl 74,114 1.20¢ 75,323
benefits
Total non-current liabilities 16,396,112 (22,225) 16,373,887
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables ] - 4,195,91. 4,195,913
Current portion of long-term borrowings Ik 1,796,99; 60,27 1,857,269
Notes payable i 450,19! (450,195 -
Accounts payable i 713,76l (713,760 -
Due to related parties i 2,99¢ (2,994 -
Deferred revenue 528,66. - 528,663
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ij 3,147,29' (3,147,29¢ R
Total current liabilities 6,639,903 (58,058) 6,581,845
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 26,610,925 (96,208) 26,514,717
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36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS”) (continued)

36-6  Reconciliation of equity asat 31 December 2016

Note As al

36-8 31 December 20!

SR

Total equity under SOCPA 3,574,910
Actuarial value of end of service benefits gl (1,209
Measurement of debt arrangement costs c (14,716
Total adjustment to equity (15,925)
Total equity under IFRS 3,558,985

36-7  Effect of IFRS adoption on the Statement of Cash Flowsfor the year ended 31 December 2016

Amounts
previously Effect of
I;Ig_tg reported transitionto  Amountsreported
(SOCPA) IFRS under IFRS
SR’000 SR’000 SR’000
Net cash flows from operating activities m 2,365,29 (1,133,918 1,231,38
Net cash flows from investing activities m (2,267,263 284,48! (1,982,77¢
Net cash flows from financing activities (557,974 849,43: 291,45¢
Net decreasein cash and cash equivalents (459,938) - (459,938)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnir
the year 1,378,49 - 1,378,49
Cash and cash equivalentsat the end of the
year 918,560 - 918,560

48



MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMPANY SAUDI ARABIA
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

36 IMPACT OF ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS”) (continued)

36-8
a)

b)
c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

)

k)

36-9

Notesto thereconciliations
Reclassification of right of use assets, which represents prepaid ngdeatse payments, to other
assets as these assets did not meet the definition of an intangible asseedomithin IAS 38
Intangible Assets
Reclassification of current portion of right of use assets, as detailed in point (a) to current assets.
Reallocation of debt arrangement costs to long-term borrowings in order to comply®9 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IAS 39 also requires that debt arrangement costs be
accounted for using the effective interest rate method. The company previously amortized these amounts
on a straight line basis. The effect of this change is a decrease in equity of SR 15,753,000 and SR
14,716,404 as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 respectively and a decrease in the loss of SR
1,037,000 for the year 2016.
Reallocation of Accounts receivable and Prepaid expenses and other assets to trade and other receivables
in order to comply with the presentation requirements contained within IAS 1 Presentdinanafial
Statements.
Reallocation of borrowings included in Other financial liabilities to Long-term bongsvin order to
comply with the presentation requirements contained within IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
Reallocation of Advances from Shareholders to Amounts due to related parties in order to atmply w
the presentation requirements contained within IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
The End of Service Benefit liability is a defined post-employment benefit lialii§.19 Employee
Benefits requires that liabilities of this nature be actuarially valued. The effec$ ghtmige is a decrease
in equity of SR 1,789,000 and SR 1,209,000 as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 respectively
and a decrease in the loss of SR 427,000 for the2d4y.
Reallocation of foreign exchange gains and profit on disposal of property and equipment from finance
charges and finance income respectively to other income in order to comply with the presentation
requirements contained within IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
Reallocation of Notes payable, Accounts payable, Due to related parties and Accrued expenses and other
liabilities to Trade and other payables in order to comply with the presentation requireor@atsed
within IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
Reallocation of accrued finance charges relating to long-term borrowings from Accrued expenses and
other liabilities to current portion of long-term borrowings.
Reallocation of current portion of debt arrangement costs as detailed in point ¢) to currenigbdotig-
term borrowings.
Actuarial gain related to the end of service benefit liability which is recorded as pathaf
comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits.
Reclassification of purchase of right use assets from investing to operatingesctividl disclosure of
proceeds on disposal of property and equipment.
Net fair value gain on hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges is recorded astipairt of
comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The Company has changed name of balance sheet to statement of financial position and statement of
income to statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income to meet the requireménis of IA

The Company has not availed any mandatory and short term exemptions given in IFRS 1 ‘First Time

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’.
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